NATIONAL GRIEVANCE
NG-2/11/22
Date: February 11, 2022
To:

Denise Biaggi-Ayer
Executive Director
Office of Labor-Management Relations
U.S. Department of Veterans Affairs
810 Vermont Avenue, NW
Washington, DC 2042
Denise.biaggi-ayer@va.gov
Sent via electronic mail only

From: Alec Summerfield, Staff Counsel, National Veterans Affairs Council (#53) (“NVAC”),
American Federation of Government Employees, AFL-CIO (“AFGE”)
RE:

National Grievance against the Department of Veterans Affairs for its unilateral
implementation of changes to procedures governing the submission of
Weather and Safety Leave requests
STATEMENT OF CHARGES

Pursuant to the provisions of Article 43, Section 11 of the Master Agreement Between the
Department of Veterans Affairs and the American Federation of Government Employees (2011)
(“MCBA”), American Federation of Government Employees/National Veterans Affairs Council
(“the Union”) is filing this National Grievance against you and all other associated officials and/or
individuals acting as agents on behalf of the Department for failing to satisfy bargaining
obligations and unliterally requiring bargaining unit employees to request Weather and Safety
Leave (“WSL”) through the Light Electronic Action Framework (“LEAF”) or PDF forms despite
VATAS being the official, negotiated time and attendance system. To date VA has failed to remedy
this violation, and as such, continues to violate negotiated agreements and federal law.
Specifically, the VA violated Articles 2, 3, 35, 47, 49, and the Duration of Agreement
clause of the MCBA, Memorandums of Understanding executed October 21, 2014 and August 19,
2013, 5 U.S.C. § 7116(a), and any and all other relevant articles, laws, regulations, and past
practices not herein specified. The Union specifically reserves the right to supplement this
grievance based upon the discovery of new evidence or information of which it is not presently
aware, or otherwise, as necessary.
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Background
VATAS is the Department’s official time and attendance system. Put simply, it allows
employees to request, and management officials to approve or deny, various categories of leave.
Beginning in December 2021, the Department began implementing new requirements out of
VATAS for employees to request for COVID-19 related reasons. These requirements were
implemented piecemeal on a VISN or facility level. On December 23, 2021, the VA Deputy Under
Secretary for Health, Dr. Steven Lieberman, issued a delegation of authority memorandum to
Veterans Health Administration (“VHA”) senior leaders and other key officials regarding WSL
(Exhibit A). The memo delegated the authority to certain officials to approve WSL in certain
increments when employees are required to quarantine due to exposure to COVID-19 or isolate
due to infection.
Despite VATAS being the negotiated official time and attendance system for bargaining
unit employees, multiple facilities began implementing additional procedures for requesting WSL
outside of VATAS. 1 Further, the Department violated two separate MOUs, which require that local
Union leaders be fully trained in changes to VATAS and that NVAC is provided with a deployment
schedule regarding changes to VATAS (Exhibits E and F).
For example, on December 22, 2021, the VA Central Iowa Health Care System
(“VACIHCS”) Human Resources Specialist Jenna Redding circulated documents to all VACIHC
supervisors outlining the procedures for requesting weather and safety leave for COVID-19 related
reasons (Exhibit B). The email stated that employees should submit a specific PDF form with
relevant medical documentation to their supervisor. The form was attached to the email, along with
a document entitled “COVID Leave Options.”
On January 14, 2022, VA Iliana Health Care System Executive Director Staci Williams
circulated a similar email to the entire Danville, Illinois VHA (Exhibit C). This email stated that
employees would be required to use the LEAF system when requesting WSL. Attached to the
email was a LEAF demonstration PowerPoint presentation in PDF form entitled, “Work Life
Leave Request, VA LEAF Demonstration.” The presentation listed the types of leave requests to
be entered through LEAF and the types of leave requests that could not. 2 Again, LEAF is not the
negotiated time and attendance system for bargaining unit employees.
On January 18, 2022, VA Portland Health Care System Director Darwin Goodspeed
circulated an email entitled, “COVID-19 Update” (Exhibit D). Included in the email was a section
outlining the process for requesting WSL for COVID-19 related reasons. Director Goodspeed
directed employees to utilize an attached PDF form for all WSL requests. The email further
indicated that a request would not be approved without the attached form.
All of these requirements constitute a change in working conditions because the Union and
the Department previously negotiated VATAS as the sole and exclusive time and attendance
system. The Department cannot make changes that alter the time and attendance system through
For purposes of this Grievance, the Union is including representative examples of a nationwide violation.
The presentation explicitly describes sick leave, annual leave, LWOP of less than 30 days, and court leave as not
available to request through LEAF.

1
2

2

VATAS without first bargaining. However, the Department never provided the Union with notice
and an opportunity to bargain over any of these changes prior to implementation.
Violations
By refusing to negotiate in good faith with the Union prior to implementing new WSL
request requirements, the Department committed an unfair labor practice under 5 U.S.C. §
7116(a)(5). Additionally, Article 2 of the MCBA requires that the Department comply with
applicable federal statutes and regulations in the administration of matters covered by the MCBA.
Therefore, in violating 5 U.S.C. § 7116, the Department also violated Article 2. Further, Article 3
encourages the parties to maintain a cooperative labor-management relationship that is based on
mutual respect, open communication, consideration of each other’s views, and minimizing
collective bargaining disputes. By failing to negotiate with the Union before requiring employees
to submit WSL requests through a form or LEAF as opposed to VATAS, the Department
renounced its commitments under Article 3 of the MCBA and triggered further collective
bargaining disputes.
Additionally, Article 35 of the MCBA requires that the Department negotiate all changes
to the automated time and attendance system in accordance with government-wide law,
regulations, and the MCBA itself. In failing to negotiate changes in the WSL process, the
Department violated failed to meet its obligations under Article 35. The Department also violated
Articles 47, 49, and the Duration of Agreement clause of the MCBA, which sets forth the parties’
bargaining obligations at the national level.
Remedy Requested
The Union asks that, to remedy the above situation, the VA agree to the following:
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

To cease and desist the implementation of requirements that requests for WSL be submitted
outside of VATAS, including but not limited to through LEAF or PDF forms;
To return to status quo ante until bargaining obligations are met;
To fully comply with its contractual obligations under Articles 2, 3, 35, 47, 49, and the
Duration of Agreement clause of the MCBA and its statutory obligations under 5 U.S.C. §
7116(a);
To distribute an electronic notice posting signed by the Deputy Under Secretary for Health
to all bargaining unit employees, via email, concerning the Department’s unilateral
implementation of changes in conditions of employment in violation of the MCBA and
federal law;
To make-whole any bargaining unit employee adversely affected by the unilateral change
in conditions of employment, specifically any procedures regarding the submission of
WSL requests outside of VATAS, including restoration of leave, back pay, interest, and
attorney’s fees;
To comply with its obligations under federal law, regulations, and contract;
To agree to any and all other remedies appropriate in this matter.
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Time Frame and Contact
This is a National Grievance, and the time frame for resolution of this matter is not waived
until the matter is resolved or settled. If you have any questions, please contact the undersigned at
AFGE Office of the General Counsel. The undersigned representative is designated to representthe
Union in all matters related to the subject of this National Grievance.

Alec Summerfield
Staff Counsel, National VA Council
Office of the General Counsel
American Federation of Government
Employees, AFL-CIO
80 F Street, NW
Washington, DC 20001
tel: 202.639.6424
efax: 202.379.2928
alec.summerfield@afge.org

cc:

Alma L. Lee, President, AFGE/NVAC
William Wetmore, Chairperson, Grievance and Arbitration Committee, AFGE/NVAC
Thomas Dargon, Jr., Supervisory Attorney, AFGE/NVAC
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Exhibit A

Exhibit B

From: Reding, Jenna A. <Jenna.Reding@va.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, December 22, 2021 9:49 AM
To: VHACIH SUPERVISORS <VHACIHSUPERVISORS@med.va.gov>
Subject: COVID-19 Leave and Vaccination Mandate Updates
Supervisors, please see below for information on leave related to COVID-19 Leave.
COVID-19 Leave Options
If you are unable to work due to COVID-19 symptoms, diagnosis, and/or being required to quarantine, please see the
attachment “COVID-19 Leave Options” or the share point for your leave options based on your specific circumstance
COVID-19 Leave Options (sharepoint.com).
Options include the below. Please see the attachment or share point for clarification on when each leave type is
applicable.
 Sick Leave (VATAS or supervisor by proxy)
 Annual Leave (VATAS or supervisor by proxy)
 Request Advanced Annual Leave (Via LEAF Resource Request - VISN 23 Benefits)
 Telework (Work with supervisor)
 FMLA (VISN23WorklifeBenefits@va.gov)
 Weather and Safety Leave (Employee should submit form attached and medical documentation to supervisor,
who will send to VHACIHERLRSBU@va.gov)
o Up to 15 days may be approved by director for qualifying situations, if all sick leave exhausted and
telework is not an option.
o Employee is experiencing symptoms of COVID-19 and is unable to telework
o Employee has been advised to self-quarantine for reasons related to COVID-19 and is unable to telework
o Other situations as determined by approving official that employee is unable to safely perform work or
telework
Questions: VHACIHERLR@va.gov
Thank you,
Human Resources
VACIHCS
Phone 515-699-5809
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DEPARTMENT OF VETERANS AFFAIRS
CENTRAL IOWA HEALTH CARE SYSTEM
3600 30th Street
Des Moines, IA 50310

VA Clinic-Mason City
520 S. Pierce, Suite 150
Mason City, IA 50401
VA Clinic-Ft. Dodge
2419 Second Ave N
Ft. Dodge, IA 50501
VA Clinic-Knoxville
1607 N Lincoln St
Knoxville, IA 50138
VA Clinic-Marshalltown
101 Iowa Ave W
Marshalltown, IA 50158

Date:
Name:
Position:
Service Line: ACofS
Supervisor:
Director
Gail Graham, Director
VA Central Iowa Health Care System
3600 30th Street
Des Moines, IA 50310
SUBJECT: Weather and Safety Leave Request – COVID19
1.) Reason for Request:

2.) Dates of Request (Please include number of hours each day) :

3.) Other leave options pursued and why they are not used:

*Please attach documentation (such as email from Employee Health)

Approve

Disapprove

GAIL L. GRAHAM
Director

Approving Official Comments:

VA Clinic-Carroll
311 S Clark St, Suite 275
Carroll, IA 51401
VA Clinic-Des Moines
Community Resource &
Referral Center (CRRC)
1223 Center St, Suite 17
Des Moines, IA 50309

Exhibit C

From: Williams, Staci M. <Staci.Williams@va.gov>
Sent: Friday, January 14, 2022 7:03 AM
To: VHADAN ALL <VHADANALL@va.gov>
Subject: Leave Options

Leave options currently available (in addition to sick leave, LWOP, etc) due to COVID include the
following:
Click the button below for the
Worklife Leave Request Leaf Portal

Advanced Sick Leave—Request in LEAF. Requires supporting medical documentation.
Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA). COVID-19 may be considered a qualifying serious
health condition under the FMLA. A serious health condition is defined as, but not limited to, an
illness, injury, impairment or physical or mental condition that involves inpatient care (i.e.
overnight stay in a hospital or medical care facility) or continuing treatment by a health care
provider. Request in LEAF. Requires supporting medical documentation.
Weather and Safety Leave. Weather and safety leave may be authorized for an employee
who is personally subject to movement restrictions/quarantine under the direction of a public or
local health authority (and is unable to telework or is not a telework program participant). The
employee must not be too ill to work. Request in LEAF. Requires proof of quarantine.
Link to the portal is above, also attached is a tutorial for using the LEAF site to submit a
request.
I thank you all for your service to our country and to our Veterans, especially during this time!
Staci
Staci M. Williams, Pharm D, RPh
Executive Director
VA Illiana Health Care System
1900 E. Main St. Danville, IL 61832
217-554-5073
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Exhibit D

From: Goodspeed, Darwin G. (Portland) <Darwin.Goodspeed@va.gov>
Sent: Tuesday, January 18, 2022 3:18 PM
Subject: COVID -19 Update - January 18, 2022

Be Persistent about
Masking & Eye
Protection and we
will Persevere
1

Weather and Safety Leave: Updated guidance has been provided concerning
WSL-eligibility as it pertains to COVID. For all WSL requests/approvals, the Portland
WSL Request (attached must be utilized).
When considering WSL, the following updates must be met:
 Employee tests positive for COVID, or is awaiting test results, AND
 Employee is able to perform their current duties (i.e. not incapacitated); AND
o
Employee cannot telework & Employee
is following testing protocol
If All answers are YES, the employee is eligible
for WSL. If any answer is NO, the employee is
not eligible for WSL.

PPE Update : VAPORHCS: Temporary
Expanded N95 Recommendations During
Omicron Surge (see attached)
Due to the high transmission of the Omicron
variant, employees who are currently required to
use a face mask only in their work setting may
now elect to use an N95 respirator instead. This
is encouraged, in particular for patient care staff,
but not required. Those who do choose to use
an N95 will be issued one per day. This
expanded use of N95s does not require medical
clearance or fit testing but does require basic
training prior to first use.

The expanded use of N95s differs from the mandatory use as part of our facility’s
Respiratory Protection Program. For COVID-positive or COVID-suspected patient care,
all staff must continue to apply Enhanced Respiratory Precautions including the use of
fit-tested N95s or equivalent (e.g., PAPR).
This expanded use of N95s does not required medical clearance or fit testing but does
required basic training prior to first use – see linked OSHA requirements
https://www.osha.gov/laws-regs/regulations/standardnumber/1910/1910.134AppD . For
additional information, a powerpoint training is available in TMS:
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Exhibit E

Exhibit F

